Oakland Landmarks Preservation Advisory Board

OAKLAND LANDMARK, S-7/S20 PRESERVATION COMBINING ZONE,
AND HERITAGE PROPERTY APPLICATION FORM

This form is for use in requesting the City of Oakland pursuant to its Zoning Regulations to designate a
Landmark or Heritage Property or to rezone one or more properties to the S-7 or S-20 Preservation Combining
Zone.
1. IDENTIFICATION
Historic Name: ~ McWethy & Greenleaf Bungalow Court
and/or Common Name: 295 MacArthur Blvd
2. ADDRESS/LOCATION
Street and number: 295 MacArthur Blvd., Oakland, CA
Zip Code: 94610

Assessor’s Parcel Number: 785-8
3. OWNER OF PROPERTY
Name:  Nils Ratnathicam & Teddy Swain  (PURISIMA MACARTHUR, LLC)

email:  teddyswain@gmail.com & nils@rns-partners.com

Street/Number: 2240 Rose Street
Telephone  510-717-7786
City: _ Berkeley State: CA Zip Code: 94709
4. APPLICATION FOR
___ City Landmark X Heritage Property ____S-7 District __S-20 District
5. SURVEY RATING NAME OF SURVEY DATE DEPOSITORY

B+3 Rating Adams Point Neighborhood Survey  June 30" 1986 Oakland City Planning Dept.
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1. DESCRIPTION -

A. Resource Type and Use: Present (P) and Historic (H)

Building(s) District Structure Site Object
__ P Residential Commercial Industrial Institutional
Other (specify):
B. Condition: C. Alterations: D. Site
Excellent X - Fair ~ X Unaltered ~ X Original Site
Good Poor Altered Moved (Date )
E. Style/Type: _ late 19" and 20™ century revivals: Mission/Spanish colonial revival
F. Describe the present and original (if known) physical appearance:

A "bungalow court" is a style of multi-family housing which features several small houses arranged around a
central garden. The bungalow court was created in Pasadena, California in 1909 and was the predominant form
of multi-family housing in Southern California from the 1910s through the 1930s. Homes in bungalow courts
were generally small, low-rise houses in the spirit of bungalow design; however, the homes were designed in a
variety of architectural styles, including Swiss chalet and Spanish Colonial Revival. Bungalow courts also
integrated their courtyards with the homes, providing green space to homeowners. In the case of the Bungalow
Courts at 295 MacArthur, they were built in the 1920s in the Spanish Colonial Revival style. (wikipedia)

295 MacArthur Blvd, Oakland is a 10 - unit bungalow court with stucco exterior walls yellow in tone, clay tile
roof, and concrete foundation. It is composed of two mirror image rows of identical one story four room
detached cottages, each about 30 feet square. The deep lot slopes rather steeply up toward the center of the
block; each unit has its own terraced setback with concrete retaining wall, frontage on a central driveway which
leads to three garage buildings at the rear. The retaining wall wraps around the front of the lot, rising to paired
elephantine columns about 5 foot high flanking the driveway entrance, with a semicircular niche or planter
between each pair; the wall is low along the sidewalk and at the edges of the property has smaller elephantine
columns forming gates to the rear utility corridors.

Each bungalow is basically square in plan, with projecting porches and bays that provide complexity in form
and allow them to interlock ingeniously on the site. The main roof is a low gable with the ridge parallel to the
driveway; the uphill half of the driveway fagcade of each unit is a shallow bay with cross-gable, battered sides,
and a large recessed rectangular window with a vertical grillwork and slender turned spindles. The downhill
half of the fagade has a similar window of size and shape, this one with 3 part casement and ornamental
woodwork on the mullions. Set slightly back on the downhill side is the porch, with round-arched opening and
its own tiled shed roof. Beyond, on the more elaborate exposed end units, is a tiled roof chimney, and an
additional tile cross-gable, whose lower wall includes a grillwork of cast concrete octagons. On the other units,
only the porch projects downhill, and nests with an uphill rear bay on the neighboring unit; the walls are
perhaps 3 feet apart. Eaves are shallow, ornamented with narrow pole like rafters; each gable end has a cast
concrete shell shaped vent at the peak.

Paths and steps to each unit are red painted concrete. The single lane driveway is exposed concrete recently
repaved (2021). At the end of the lot are three frame garage buildings, contemporary with the units, a 3-car
garage directly at the end of the driveway and two, 2 car garages angled in the corners. Landscaping is
generally keeping with the architecture.

(based on State Historic Resources Inventory form for 295 Macarthur Blvd., Adams Point Neighborhood Survey, 1986, Oakland City Planning
Department Cultural Heritage Survey.)
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8. SIGNIFICANCE

A. Construction date(s): 1922

B. Architect/Builder/Designer: _McWethy (Leroy) & Greenleaf (Franklin R.) - architects
McWethy & Greenleaf were featured in prominent publications in the 1920s for their work
in and around Oakland.

C. Statement of Significance (include summary statement of significance as first paragraph):

295 MacArthur Blvd, appears eligible for the national register at the local level of significance under Criterion
C, Architecture, which is also its area of significance. Its significant period/date is 1922 when it was designed
and built by the firm McWethy & Greenleaf. It is also significant in the neighborhood as a rare and archetypal
example of a bungalow court, and as an example of the pattern of infill apartment development in Adams Point
in the 1920’s.

The bungalow court was built under 10 separate permits, one for each unit (72488-97), all issued September 25,
1922, each for a 1 story, four room, $4,000 dwelling, to McWethy and Greenleaf as owner, architect and
builder. Leroy McWethy and Franklin R. Greenleaf appear as a construction firm in Oakland directories in the
1920’s’, McWethy sometimes also listed individually as a civil engineer, and Greenleaf as an Architect. Their
best known Oakland work is probably the Howden Tile Co’s, showpiece building at 325-43 17" Street, the
specification forms which describe McWethy and Greenleaf as an “architecture, engineering, and construction”
firm. They are also known to have built two other buildings in the 17% street commercial district, in 1924 and
1927, and 264-68 14" Street (1925). They are one of a number of full-service design and construction firms
encountered in Oakland in the ‘20’s, particularly in the apartment field: Sommarstrom Bros., Harry C. Knight,
R.C. Hillen, and C.M. MacGregor and others. Some also offered real estate, financing, and property
management. Though generally overlooked in the mystique of the architecturally designed building, these firms
works represent an important and often distinguished development pattern.

The McWethy and Greenleaf bungalow court is one of three in Adams Point dating from 1921-1922. The other
two: 432-50 Euclid and 329-45 Perkins, are loosely European Provincial in style, 295 MacArthur is Adams
Point’s only example, and probably one of Oakland best, of the ideal California Spanish bungalow court
imagery, distinguished by its solid materials, decorative detailing, and ingenuity in fitting the units together on
the lot to achieve both density and individuality.

The bungalow court was constructed on one of several undeveloped extra-large lots (100 x 200’) in the Oakland
Heights tract — another later became the site of Temple Beth Abraham (327 MacArthur, 1929). Neighbors
several doors north included 3 large turn of the century houses, no longer extant (near the cross street: the
abnormally long block may have postponed development), and to the north on smaller lots, a cluster of mostly
contractor built prairie and craftsman houses from the early 1910’s. McWethy and Greenleaf apparently bought
the lot from Harriet Corliss who had owned it since at least 1906, and built the bungalow court on speculation;
by 1925 it was owned by Elva L. Auckerman, minimally identified as a domestic at 2906 Hopkins in the 1925
directory only.

(based on State Historic Resources Inventory form for 295 Macarthur Blvd., Adams Point Neighborhood Survey, 1986, Oakland City Planning
Department Cultural Heritage Survey.)

9. SOURCES / BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

The State of California — The Resources Agency Historic Resources Inventory
Department of Parks and Recreation City of Oakland



Reference Photos of 295 MacArthur Blvd. Oakland.
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Ready For Bids About Au un 1st,
RESIDESCE 10,500
LOS ALTOS, Santa Clara Co.,, l:.‘s.
ﬁnn;:g-:;;rh?—murg rrnmat and  brick
efce and separates FaAraEd.
Owner—Withheld £ uE—_—
Architeot—Martin A, Sheldon, Monad-
nock Bldg., Ban Franclaco,

Begra I-tad Hld- Balng Taken.
ﬁa ﬁ Cost, §22,000
LI-E. Lake
ﬂnl and ong-half ll‘.onr relnforced eon-
crete rrealden
'lhin--ltri_ enfro, Eelseyville, Lake

Cal
Architect—McWethy & Greent
"relagraph Ave, Oakiand

Bhﬂ Ealﬂn' Taken for G for Gin.rﬂ Gon.t

l“llﬂ
LA.ND Alamedn Co,, l.‘:nl. Tmth
Glm Hoad,
Two-gtory frame and plaster resldénce
wner— Wh

ta,
Art‘htlﬂtl—;’d‘ﬁ’il‘h# & Gresnleatf, 2510
Telegraph Ave., Oakland,

Flans E'-lln Prepared,

RESIDENCE Cout, $10.000

OA.'ICLA.ND Alamadn Co,, Cal,

Twa-story frame and stucco Bpanish
style residence with tile ma: {8
rooms and lru:ﬂ

Owner—Withhe

.ﬁrchiuct—lilllacr & Warnecke, Actico
Blig., Oakland.

Bub-Controcla Awarded,

REEBIDENCE

BERKELEY, Alameda Co.,

T ‘p"'etrﬁl. l.lnﬂ Ced,l.rﬂsdl:.
W= re noe.

Owierir :rnr;;qn?l P. Oriffith, 1401 Le

Hoy Ave. Berkeley,
Arubluil—mn ord :l... Jor: 1870 Euclld
Ave, Berkale
Luntrletpr—'ﬁnnuh ‘Tranmal, 48} Cres-
aan
unag;:t“—mi-s Knapp Co. 961 4lst 5t
Flumbing—Central Plumbing Shop, 612
14th St. Oakland.
Elpe. Co.,

Electriesl Wirn
2468 Bhattuck, Berkeley.

l::nu. H-] tl:ll)

I‘Iuﬁ ;’.‘rv‘nin & Burnott, 865 12nd
M Werk—Tilden Lumber & M Co,
tnd & Harrison Sts., Oakland.
Kootfin ladding-McBean Co. #3nd

and Market Sts, Oaklan
& Hawhins,

Palnting—Armstrong

C"ﬂm'?lutlvs Plans. Geati SLKTN0
LOS ALTOS, Santn Clara Co., Cal., near

Loa Altos
Two-story frame and siucce residence
with terra o-tia tlle roof.
Cwngr—C, Calliott.
Archll-nl—ﬂulluhillﬂ & Hisl,
Rldg.. Han Francisco,
Iteady for flgures in about ¥ weeks

Phelan

I Flgured.
A Cost, $18,000
BAN Francls

PR.&J‘\CIS‘GD_ Callr. St
Woo

Two- ulor:c f-room and 3 baths Spanish
type frame and stucco realdence
and soparate garage, tile roof, coal
furnmoe,

Pwner=—MNnme withheld.

Archltect—A. H, Knoll, £22 Kearny St,
Zan Francisco,

Blds are belng taken for m general
contract,

Contract Awnarded,

REBIDENCE Coat, §12,000

J‘H.N' HATﬂﬂ San Mateo Co., Cal. Lol

Blk A, Hinth Ave

Huidwu and EArLge,

Owner—I, W. Madison, S3an Francisco

Architect—MNone,

Contractor—Hugo Hulthberg, 23 Grif-
fith Ave, 5an Franclsco,

Contract Awarded, -
E Cost, §11,720

RESIDENC

HAN JOSE., Santa Clara Co., Cal, Mar-
tin & Sequols,

One-glory 7-réom frame residence.

Qwner—Mrs, Conboy, 33 8 Idth Bt., San
Jdose.

Archilecl=None.

Contractor—H, M. Nelson, 7168 E Bania
Clara, San Jose,

DEVERLY HILLS, Loa Angelem Co.,
Cal-—Fetar Hall, 388 8. Raymond Ave.,
Pasadena, will bulld a lwo-story 18-

rogm  frame and siucco dwau:nl: !u
Holmby Hilla, for thri HKern; Goeo,
Washington Smith, lieat, Blntl
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Harbara; tile and composition roof,
hardwood Moors, hardwood and pine
trim, autematic woter hoater, f“ unit
heating svalem electric contralled, or-
namental iron, cedar Hoed clozely,
electrle refrligerator, garagoe! $60.000.

HAN DIEGO, Cal—Archt, Wm, Bar-
her, 1123 Stn:rr Bldg.. Loa Angeles, has
preparad plans for a I-story res &t
Han Dlego for John P, Mills: 18 rms.,
f baths, frame and stuccoe aopnalr., clay
tile rig. ouk and pine trim, ook flrs,
tlled baths, unit gas hig; $350,000,
Jullus Herg, 2355 lst 50, San Dlego,
contraolor,

BAN FRANCISCO—Untl Aug 4 3 P
M., bids will be recelved by Board of
Publie Waorks for alterations and ad-
ditlone to Superintendeni's Residence
at Hellef Home: est. cost, $6000, Plany
cbtninable from Hurenu of Architec
ture, Znd Floor, Cliy Hall

Contract Awarded.

RESIDENCE

DAKLAND, Alameda Co,
Sunnyhlll Rd,

Two-story frame F-room reaidence,

Dwner—L. . Stearns, 60 Market Si.,

Coat, 310,000
Cal,

Ban Franclsco,

Architect-—None.

Contrastor — Lapham Bldg. Co. 311
Laikeshore Ave, Oakland,

Flanna lwmi Figured
RESIDENCE Cost, §20,000
BERKELEY, Euclld Ave.

Two-story frame and Stosso Itallan

farm-house type residence with
tile roof,

Owner—Lea Foulds.

Architect

= Henry H., Guiterson, 528
Powell 8t F,
TREIng l”“ﬁ Nr 2 general contract.

SCHOOLS
ADDITIONS Cost, §136,000
BAN LEANDRO, Alameds Co., Cal. Me-
Klnley and Washlngton School
Sltesn,

Twao Iwo-glery relnforced concrele ad-
dltlnnn te grammar school bulld-
Woshington School addition
WI I ‘contain 1% classrooms and the
MeKinley, § rooms,
Uwner=3an Leandro BEchool Disirlet.
Architect — John J. Donovan, Tapscolt
Hldg., Oaklnnd,

Ratorany, July 24, 1526

Contractor-—James Lo MoLaughlin, Jﬂ.

Kearny St Sxn Francisco,
Lumber—Smith Lumber o, Foot
18th Awve., Onllbmned,

Hock, Snnd, ravel, Uemenf=—Larsen
Bros., 501 He phurn Hi., San Leandrp

Plumblng—Carl 1. Doell, 487 2lsg 8t
Trakland.

Eleeirieal Work—Hoberts A Cog,
L2214 Hrondway, Onklnmel

a\dglllmml BEub-Contracts  Awnrded,

HOHOO. Cost,  §A5.900 &

REDWOOD CITY, San Matwo Go, Cal.

Une and twoe-slory frame and stucco
school with tile roof (4  olass-

o ruum\! mlul J:m-u.-ml.vl ¥ ¥

Wher=—Maril Fule Onks Elementa

School Diatrict 'l

Architeet—0C, 1. (lotischalk and M. J.

Biat, Phelen Bldg., San Franci=co.

Cinlraclor — "It'lllle:lntn Constr, Co.,
Hemran Itldg., 2

Flambing—Wm. I ||q.;n.r_|_ 135 Wina-
low, Redwood iy,

Klectelenl Work—3M, E Dvan, 211 Main

81, Redwosd iy,
Eheet Metol—Wallace Shoet Metal Whks
Ji Arguelle, Hedwood 5]
Compantilon ooting —Malott & Petor-
son 20th and larrison 8t, 2 F.
Tflrillll'-‘"Bl: = Oraff-Winlund-Graff

Irom—H. It HIIl o, 28
Tehama St., Ban Franclsco.

A previously reported, mill work
was awarded to Dudficld Lumbsr Co.,
§07 Alma St, Palo Alto; lumber to Sa.n
Franclsco Lumber (o, Ft. Mason
San Franclsco: travatite 1o P c:rnmﬂ
Cuw, 1845 Ban Bruno Ave, San Fran-
claco: steel partitions te Price-Tolts
o, 21 Morker St, 2

frunameninl

As proviously reported, coniracts not
Included in the general coniracl were
Riceerienl Work oo u

cetrien == NaPage- .‘-'I!l:Klnnu

128 10th St, Oakland, §24, 4
Hfu':lh-. l;:-;ch]:l‘ !hdg \-'t'n'lilllln. -
Jeo. uster, Ilst and Grova

il Stz Oakland, $54,717,
nte Dinckboards—C. F. Weber & Co.
474 11th St, Oaklnpd, F1540, B
Window Fixtares—Hauser W indow. Co.,
H:!ﬂ Harrison 8t., San Francsico,

TAFT, Kern Co., Cal—Roy B. Myer:
Bakerstlold, st $13,000 awarded eon:
tract by Taft Unlon High School Dis-
trict for 20,000 sqg. fo driveways and
10,609 gq ft. walks In school ETounids,

TRADE MARK

JOHNSON '

RIPSAWING CUT-OFF MACHIME

X

FAST

SAFE

COUNTERPOISED

QUALITY

CONVENIENT

ON
THE
SQUARE

AWONOD3

QIDINYTIVE DIWNYNAQ

*

JOHNSOMN SAFETY SAW WORKS

SAN FRANCISCO. [CALIFORNIA

20 STILLMAN ST,
1924

. —

*




Article Dated January, 1923
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SACRAMENTO ANNOUNCES NEW
INDUSTRIAL SERVICE
By A. 8. DUDLEY

Sacramento will seriously enter upon a very
.definite program of industrial development
‘during the coming year. The office organiza-
‘tion of the Chamber of Commerce will be
shaped to concentrate its principal efforts in
‘that direction. Development of industry is
‘one of the big problems confronting Sacra-
mento today.

Our investigations have revealed that the
percentage increase in growth of industry has
‘not been as great as the increase in population.
This should not be taken to mean that indus-
tries which have been established in Sacra-
‘mento are not operating successfully. As a
- fact, these industries have been unusually suc-

‘cessful it is shown by an analysis of Federal
reports and statistics. Their importance is
proved by the census figures showing that of
the total value of industrial output—546,000,-
'ﬂﬂﬂ—appmmmam!y $20,000,000 was added
by manufacture. This percentage is higher
than that for the State of California taken as
a whole.

‘The reason Sacramento has not made
greater industrial strides is because time and
_effort were centered u&un other highly essen-
‘tial local problems. Now, we are prepared
to carry on the industrial program. We have
‘started by appointing an industrial advisory
mmm;tee, the pcrs-::mnel of which includes
rm{!ﬁ in various lines of dctivity. This com-
‘J?,nilﬂtt will advise with the Industrial Depart-
~ment of the Chamber of Commerce which
- will make a comprehensive survey of the in-
- dustrial situation covering the entire Sacra-
~mento Valley with particular regard to raw
E matenals, markets and distribution. Co-
~operating with the Industrial Department
“will be a Research and Statistical Depart-
- ment,

During the past five years Sacramento has
expended more than $10,000,000 in public im-
pravements practically all of which will be of
direct benefit to industrial establishments. The
figure includes $2,700,000 for a new water
pumping and filtration plant which assures in-
dustries of one of the essential requirements—
an abundant supply of excellent water at un-
usually low rates. At a cost of millions of
dollars one of the power companies serving

Sacramento and vicinity has added more than,

100,000 horsepower to its plant capacity.
Man}' thousands of dollars have been expend-
(Concluded on Page XVIII)

BUNGALOW COURT EQUIPPED
-~ WITH NEW HEATING
APPLIANCES

As an added instance of the popularity
aof “Firelight,” a new and practical gas
heater for the fireplace, and Hall Junior
Gas Floor Heater, an efficient single unit
heating agent, both of which are manufac-
tured by the D. H. McCorkle Co. of Oak-
land, Calif., the firm of McWethy and
Greenleaf, Oakland builders, is installing
these hcatmg agents in their new bungalow
court series of houses, which includes a
square of ten bungalows situated at Jean
and Perry streets in Oakland. A “Firelight”
gas heater is installed in the living room
of every family in the court, while an elec-
trically controlled Hall Junior Gas Heater,
placed in the dining room, will keep an even,
healthful temperature there and in the
kitchen, bedroom and bath.

Scientific tests have demonstrated that the
D. H. McCorkle “Firelight” product pro-
duces three times as much heat as a gas
log four times as much heat as a gas grate,
and nine times as much heat as a wood or
coal fire. All tests imply “at the same dis-
tance” as the other agent in comparison.

One of the reasons for “Firelight's” great
heating capacity is that it sends all of the
heat out into the room, while a separate flue
discharges the combustion products in the
chimney. Under intense heat from gas burn-
ers placed below them, the composition radi-
ants become an incandescent mass and pro-
duces a beautiful old-fashioned driftwood
fire effect. This point, coupled with the
strong, penctrating heat of the “Firelight”
%iw:s it many advantages that are novel in
the gas heating field.

Hall Junior Gas Floor Heater is capable
of heating three rooms, according to Me-
Wethy and Greenleaf. Its intense heat was
novelly used by them in drying out the
plaster while the houses were in t %-u: process
of construction, It is a convenient, inex-

ensive heater which may readily be installed

in any home, new or old. Ecing thirty
inches in height, it has a register of four-
teen inches square in the floor of the room.
This is sufficient to flood a room or suite
with air warmed to personal desires.

McWethy and Greenleaf chose “Fire-
light” for their bungalow court because of
the simple and graceful design, which in-
cludes andirons to match the heater. The

{Concluded on Page- XVILD)
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WINNERS IN HOSPITAL CONTEST
ANNOUNCED

Butler & Rodman of New York City re-
ceived the first prize in the international
competition recently conducted by The Mad-
ern Hospital magazine for the plans of a
small general hospital.  Three awards of
%500, $300 and $200 and two honorable men-
tions were made, ;

Second and third places in the contest
were won by John Roth of Atascadero, Cal,,
and Ernst Hocdtke of Cambridge, Mass.
Selection was made from 51 sets of plans
submitted by hospital architects of the United
States, Canada and England, judgment be-
ing on the bases of economy in construc-
tion and operation, integrity of designs,
health values and flexibility.

Cervin & Horn, hospital architects of Rock
Island, 111, were given first honorable men-
tion in the competition, the other honorable
mention going to Lemuel Cross Dillenbach
of the School of Architecture, University
of Tllinois.

The jury of award, composed of Dr. 5.
S. Goldwater of New York, Asa 5. Bacon
of Chicago, Clarence H. Johnston of St
Paul, William Buck Stratton of Detroit and
Miss Adelaide M. Lewis of Kewanee, 111,
met in Chicago in March to study the plans.

Anncuncement of the winning architects
will be made in the April issue of The
Meodern Heospital, and in the succeeding
number will appear the prize plans with
the interpretations of the judges, Subse-
quent publication, with ¢ritical comments,
will be made of fifteen or twenty other of
the more intercsting designs for their edu-
cational value,

Mr. Charles Butler, who drew the design
awarded frst place, is a graduate of Colum-
bia University and of the Ecole des Beaux
Arts in Paris. He is a fellow of the Amer-
ican Institute of Architects: Chevalier of the
Legion of Honor, France; Officer of St
Sava, Serbia, and the president of the New
York chapter of the American Institute of
Architects. He and his firm have planned
a number of important hospitals in New
York and the East, as well as abroad.

ANNOUNCEMENT
Lloyd Rally, architect, announces the
opening of his offices at 1019 Wright & Cal-
lender Building, Fourth and Hill streets,
Los Angeles. Telephone 12681.

LARGEST ROOFING ORDER
SHIPPED TO ORIENT

The largest single order of roofing mqer
shipped to the Orient left San Franms:;:
March 20 for Bombay, India, on the
steamer Diana Dollar.

The shipment consists of 51 carloads of
reinforced  Malthoid Roofing for Pabeo
Roofs and will be used on the wareha;tﬁeé
c{f the Port Trust Cotton Depot, Bombay,
ndia:

It was manufactured by The Paraffine
Companies, Inc., in their mc%\'wtle plsmt;
which s the larg¢st single roofing plant in
the warld. |

{l:om:ludcd from Page XV’II
“Firelights” installed were ﬁmshr.d to har-
monize with the color scheme of the bun-
galow interiors.

On the “Firelight" a patented grid that

prevents back-firing into the gas chambf:rr
a patented burner that insures proper gas
combustion in a quiet but intensely hot flame;
a handy orifice thumhscrew, which penmtg
the office to be cleaned in an instant without
distributing the adjustment of the burnq:;
and a convenient valve lever, placed at the
side of the heater where it may be s
and comfortably wrned by hand, are
of the excellent features.

All of the McWethy and Greenleaf
galows are built in the four-room a
ment.  The attractive double-quint
cheery, warm houses has been occa
much interest in continental side real
circles. Having two gas heaters for four
rooms is a forward stride in this type of
comfort appointing,

{Concluded from Page XVII)

ed for 1mprﬂv&mmt$ on the Sa-: i
River, the importance of which is in
in government figures showing that a
mately one million tons of commerce are
ried on this stream annually.
The tremendous increase in population
the Pacific Slope, for which gacramm‘iﬁl
an ideal distributing center by reason
geographical location, and the equally
increase in volume of agrlcultt}rstl 1
and timber ;l)‘roducu:m, is ﬂonstam}y improv-
ing the market and suppl}r of raw materials
for articles manufactured in Sacramen
Now that Sacramento has prepare
with complete requirements demand
dustries, we will devote the greater
our activity toward attracting and securing
manufacturing plants. I
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Terra cotta

Conpttenuecd from puge 1

Though ceramic glazes have an inherent
capacity to display a wide range of luminous
unfading colors, tha potential remained
largely untapped. Things would begin (o
chanpe towards the end of the 19206, Beaux
Arts confinued to exent an influence but with
increasing explomtions of new elements of
style. Overall, architectiral desigm evolved
towards using flatter surfaces and emphasiz-
ing more economical building materials and
methods. Terra cotta manufacturers devel-
oped an extruded product called ceramic
veneer which enabled them to continue to
compete, especially during the Depression.
Immediately before and after 1930, ceramic
color suddenly appeared on the facades of a
number of buildings. This use of vivid color
represented a liberation of sorts in the realm
of architectursl ceramics, Oakland is fortu-
nate i having several sunviving examples
from that brief bat fascinating period,

In this article, 'l highlight cight buildings
that provide good examples of various glaze
finishes, amanged by geography so vou may
et out on o self-guided walking wuor. These
eight buildings mnge in age from 90 1o 115
years old. Almaost without exception, ceramic
colors rensain unchanged over time, an
extraordinary hallmark of fired ceramics. The
cobors vou see here appear exactly as they
did the day they were removed from the kiln,
06 vears ago m this instance, The buildings
themselves and the attachment systems ane
more vulnerable (o deteriomtion, but the
glaze colors endure,

% Howden Building, 337 17th 5t.

1925: McWethy & Greenleaf, archilects

The entrance (o upper floor offices at 337

I Tih 5t. s framed by an elabormte formal sur-

Landmark, S-7, S-20, or Heritage Property Application
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roumnd where units of terma cotta and tile
scamiessly blend together to display bright
shiny glazes. All units which have projecting
decorative relief are terra cotta, while those
with flat surfaces are tiles.

Robert Howden tiled the exterior (o adver-
tise his company, which sold and mstalled
tiles, Inside the entrance ot 1628 Webster SL
is Califormia’s only surviving showroom
from the Golden Age of tile, the 1920, The
walls and columns around the recessed
showroom entry are elabortely decomted
with colorful tiles, Tile installations through-
out the 1920s were bursting with color, while
terra cotta continued to use colored glazes
sparinghy.

% YWCA, 1315 Webster 56

1914: Julia Morgan, architect. Terra cotta by
N, Clark & Sons

This 5 a relatively rare early example of
color being wsed on a ceramic fagade,
Beeanse the architeet based this building on
an Ttalian Renaissanee Palazzo, the inclusion
of Della Robbia-style polychrome terma cotta
was thematically appropriate. The presence
of color softens the austere formeality which
historically characterized this type of build-
ing. The reserved. harmonious colors offer a
fine example of matte-glazed terra cotia,
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THE HOWDEN BUILDING has a high
gloss finish, For more on this archway
feature, see page 6.

Sonwe buildings are entirely surfaced in
terma cotia while others incorporate it in con-
Junetion with brick, stone, tile, or other mate-
nals. The base section of this building is

HTTPS S RITAY WIKIMEINAQAK Y WO A PG

THE YWCA BUILDING, buill by Julia Morgan, provides an early example of color used

on a ceramic fagade. It's also a good example of the use of a matte glaze finish.
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The Formation of MacArthur Blvd

March 20, 1942 Oakland Tribune

(April 10th, 1942 Oakland Tribune)
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Adams Point in the 1890’s.
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Claimed by the Adams family since at least the 1860s, the property now known as Adams Point had originally
been so far from town as to be more or less a country estate. The Adamses themselves lived near, but not on,
the property, nor did they even try to develop it much, beyond clearing the oaks and allowing some of its more
level portions to be farmed. But things began to change in the 1880s, as the coming of streetcars quickened the
pace of Oakland’s expansion. Suddenly, the area was looking more and more desirable. Certainly by the
summer of 1906, with the mass influx of refugees from the SF earthquake (an army of whom were camped out
— with permission — in what later became Lakeside Park) the City of Oakland had realized the area’s
increasing centrality; plans were afoot to ring the lake with grand boulevards and formalize a park area ... but
by then old Edson was long gone, and the City’s various attempts to buy out his heirs never seemed to go
anywhere.

Edson F. Adams, Edson Adams' son, was a wealthy banker
who kept rejecting Oakland’s increasingly frequent (and,
using historical money value estimates, seemingly
reasonable) offers for his property. By 1909, the City had
had enough of this stonewalling and initiated proceedings
to use eminent domain to have the property condemned and
forcibly taken from Adams. That got his attention. “Wait a
moment — what was your last offer again?” was the
response. “Why yes ... on second thought, $300,000 does
sound fair.”

By 1912, every square inch of the Point was accounted for
and sold, even if not built upon yet.

Source: Oakland Wiki — Adams Point

San Francisco Call, Volume 102, Number 159, 6
November 1907 — OAKLAND PAYS $400,000 FOR BIG
PARK TRACT [ARTICLE]

OAKLAND PAYS $400,000 FOR BIG PARK TRACT

John C. Adams Sells 32 Acres Near Lake Merritt to the City

DEED IS RECORDED
Mayor Mott Well Pleased With Acquisition of Property

OAKLAND, Nov. 6.— After many weeks of negotiating, the city, through the board of public works, has closed
the purchase of 82 acres of the wooded portion of Adams Point from John Charles Adams for $400,000. At a
special meeting of the board this afternoon the transfer was made and a warrant in favor of Adams for the
purchase price was drawn. The deed to the city was filed for record this afternoon.

Mayor Mott expressed gratification over the acquisition of this property, which comprises the larger part of
Adams Point, the key to the Lake Merritt system of parks and boulevards and the center from which the entire
park scheme of the city will radiate.
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Of Adams Point there remains to be acquired a piece on the east side which is owned by Edson F. Adams.
Negotiations failed as to this part. The city has brought a condemnation suit to get it. This litigation will be
pressed rapidly now that the major portion of the point has been deeded to the city.

Thus far the city has secured title to considerable of the park properties which were authorized for purchase
under the park bond issue. All but four small pieces in the "Willows" along the west shore of Lake Merritt have
been acquired.

Holdings that were transferred in that section of the lake front are as follows: H. C. Capwell, 90 feet, $14,400;
Terrila V. Wright, 110 feet with improvements, $40,000; Eliza J. Hyde, 60 feet, $9,600; Adele Hyde Morrison,
60 feet, $9,600; Roosevelt Johnson, 60 feet, $9,600; Thomas W. Corder, 125 feet, $20,000; R. S. Knight, 60
feet, $9,600; F. A. Braun, 42 feet, $6,750; F. A. Leach, 75 feet, $12,000. South of Twelfth street dam a piece
owned by Adolph Uhl between Tenth and Eleventh streets east of Fallon, has been secured for $3,570.

Mrs. Emelie M. Chabot has sold to the city a piece on the east side boulevard at Wayne avenue near the
northwest arm of Lake Merritt for $27,500.

Negotiations for the James L. de Fremery property in Adeline street between Sixteenth and Eighteenth are
about closed, though a slight hitch as to the time the occupants shall vacate has caused delay.

Besides the large De Fremery piece there remain small lots to be purchased as follows: A site at Peralta and
Ninth streets, a gore piece at B and Peralta streets, a gore at Harrison boulevard and Bay place and a strip
near Bushrod park. These are exclusive of the Edson Adams' holdings at Adams Point and several lots in the
marsh south of Twelfth street dam, owned by Edson Adams and others, for which condemnation suits are
pending.

Source: UCR Center for Bibliographical Studies and Research
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10. FORM PREPARED BY

Name: Teddy Swain & Nils Ratnathicam (PURISIMA MACARTHUR, LLC)

Organization/Title (if any): None Date:  12/6/22

Address: 2240 Rose Street, Telephone:  510-717-7786

City/Town: _ Berkeley State: CA_ Zip: 94707 Email teddyswain@gmail.com
DEPARTMENTAL USE ONLY rev.
1/10/2020

A Accepted by: Date:

B. Action by Landmarks Preservation Advisory Board

(1) _ Recommended  Not recommended for Landmark/ S-7/S-20 designation
Date: Resolution number:
(2) _ Designated as Heritage Property Date:
C. Action by City Planning Commission Date:
__Recommended ~_ Not recommended for Landmark/ S-7/S-20 designation
D. Action by City Council Date:

Designated: Ordinance No: Not Designated
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